### AGREEMENT

#### BETWEEN

THE BOARD OF EDUCATION

OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE

CITY OF DETROIT, MICHIGAN

-AND-

LOCAL 345

AFSCME, COUNCIL #25

AFL-CIO

JANUARY 1, 1990 - JANUARY 3, 1993

RELATIONS COLLECTION
Michigan State University

### TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE	I - PURPOSE AND INTENT1
ARTICLE	II NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE
ARTICLE	III RECOGNITION - EMPLOYEES COVERED2
ARTICLE	IV WORKING RULES2
ARTICLE	V CALL-IN TIME3
ARTICLE	VI OVERTIME3
ARTICLE	VII PERSONNEL RECORDS4
ARTICLE	VIII PROHIBITION AGAINST STRIKES5
ARTICLE	IX - STEWARDS, ALTERNATE STEWARDS & DIVISIONAL CHAIRPERSONS.
ARTICLE	X STEWARD'S TRANSFER6
ARTICLE	XI SPECIAL CONFERENCES7
ARTICLE	XII GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE8
ARTICLE	XIII DISCHARGE, SUSPENSION AND DEMOTION12
	XIV COMPUTATION OF BACK WAGES AND OVERPAYMENTS13
	XV SENIORITY13
	XVI LAYOFF AND RECALL18
	XVII HOLIDAY PROVISIONS19
	XVIII EVALUATION19
	XIX TRANSFERS AND PROMOTIONS22
	XX VACATIONS AND OFF DAYS23
	XXI GENERAL LEAVE POLICY26
	XXII FUNERAL LEAVE30
	XXIII VETERANS30
	XXIV COMMUNICABLE DISEASES32
APPTOLE	XXV SCHOOL RELATED ASSAULTS

ARTICLE	XXVI RATES OF NEW JOBS
ARTICLE	XXVII SAFETY COMMITTEE33
ARTICLE	XXVIII POSTING OF UNION NOTICES33
ARTICLE	XXIX NOTICES TO UNION33
ARTICLE	XXX JURY DUTY34
ARTICLE	XXXI SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENTS34
ARTICLE	XXXII UNION MEMBERSHIP, AGENCY SHOP AND DUES DEDUCTION.36
ARTICLE	XXXIII TAILGATE DELIVERIES38
ARTICLE	XXXIV SNOW EMERGENCY DAY OR DAYS ONLY39
ARTICLE	XXXV SUMMER WORK40
ARTICLE	XXXVI SUMMER CLEANING41
ARTICLE	XXXVII COPY OF AGREEMENT41
ARTICLE	XXXVIII WAGES41
ARTICLE	XXXIX INSURANCE: HOSPITALIZATION; LIFE; DENTAL OPTION.42
ARTICLE	XL RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTION43
ARTICLE	XLI SUBSTITUTE - OVERTIME SERVICE POLICY AMENDMENTS43
ARTICLE	XLII UNIFORM ALLOWANCE44
ARTICLE	XLIII - RESIDENCY45
ARTICLE	XLIV PERSONAL PROPERTY LOSS45
ARTICLE	XLV MISCELLANEOUS46
ARTICLE	XLVI ADDITIONAL LOCKER ROOM SERVICE50
ARTICLE	XLVII GENERAL51
ARTICLE	XLVIII CHANGE AND TERMINATION

#### AGREEMENT

This Agreement is entered into effective the 1st day of January, 1990, between the Board of Education of the City of Detroit (hereinafter referred to as the "Board") and Local 345, Michigan District Council 25 of the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees AFL-CIO (hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Union").

### ARTICLE I - PURPOSE AND INTENT

The general purpose of this Agreement is to set forth terms and conditions of employment, and to promote orderly and peaceful relations for the mutual interest of the school children of the City of Detroit, the Board, the employees, and the Union.

The parties recognize that the interest of the community and the job security of the employees depend upon the Board's success in establishing and maintaining proper service to the community.

To these ends, the Board and the Union encourage, to the fullest degree, friendly and cooperative relations between the respective representatives of the parties at all levels and among all employees.

# ARTICLE II -- NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE

A. There shall be no discrimination against any person in employment or in Union membership because of race, sex, religion, color, creed or national origin. The parties will work together to assure equal employment opportunities, and

to establish policies and regulations that will insure such equality of opportunity, consideration and treatment of all persons employed by the Board in all phases of the employment process.

B. The Board and the Union are committed to the principle of equal pay for equal work and agree that no provision of this Agreement shall be interpreted in such a manner as to preclude persons of any sex from the equal opportunity to be considered, selected and employed in any position in the bargaining unit because of the sex of such person.

### ARTICLE III -- RECOGNITION - EMPLOYEES COVERED

Pursuant to and in accordance with all applicable provisions of Act 379 of the Public Acts of 1965, the Board does hereby recognize the Union as the exclusive representative for the purpose of collective bargaining in respect to rates of pay, wages, hours of employment, and other conditions of employment for the term of this Agreement of all employees of the Board in the job classifications described in Appendix "A".

#### ARTICLE IV -- WORKING RULES

The Board may establish reasonable working rules pursuant to which all employees in the unit shall perform their assigned functions. The Union shall be notified in writing and consulted regarding said working rules prior to their effective date and prior to any change therein.

Pending formulation of any new work rules in the manner set forth above, the overtime policy and hours of work including lunch periods in various classifications, shall be continued as presently administered, and/or as changed by any supplemental agreements.

There shall not be any arbitrary change in hours solely to avoid the payment of overtime. There shall be no conflict between the work rules and the terms of this Agreement.

# ARTICLE V -- CALL-IN TIME

When members of this bargaining unit are requested by their department head to report for work at times other than their regular work shift in order to meet emergency situations, (vandalism, etc.), the called back employee shall receive as approved and authorized by the department head, the time and one-half (1-1/2) rate of pay for actual time worked or a minimum of four hours straight time, whichever is greater. The minimum of four hours straight time shall not, however, apply for continuous overtime hours worked prior to or after termination of the employee's regular work shift.

# ARTICLE VI -- OVERTIME

Overtime will be paid in the following manner:

a. One and one-half (1-1/2) times the employee's regular rate for all hours worked in excess of eight hours per day or 40 hours per week.

- b. Saturday work (6th day) will be paid at a rate of one and one-half (1-1/2) times the employee's regular rate.
- c. Sunday (7th day) and/or holidays, the rate will be two times the employee's regular rate of pay.

#### ARTICLE VII -- PERSONNEL RECORDS

Personnel records shall continue to be confidential and carefully guarded in the interest of the individual employee.

They are available only for administrative and supervisory use, but they are accessible, with the exceptions noted below, to the individual employees concerned.

The individual employee may examine his own record with the Superintendent or his designee. The exceptions include the tests and reports from the following sources:

- a. The Board Medical Examiner
- b. The Psychological Clinic
- c. Committees acting in the selection of promotion processes
- d. Placement bureaus
- e. Former employers
- f. Items which may make the Board liable for claims of improper disclosure or publication

The above documents shall remain as exceptions so long as they are not used at the hearing.

The employee may be accompanied by a Union representative during the examination of his record provided that he has made a

written request to the Board that a Union representative be present.

The use of past records at a hearing shall be restricted to items which are relevant to the matter being considered at the hearing. In the use of past records, management will take into consideration the length of time between infractions and any evident improvements in work performance by the employee.

#### ARTICLE VIII -- PROHIBITION AGAINST STRIKES

There shall not be any strike action of any type engaged in, or encouraged, by the Union against the Board, nor shall there be any lockout by the Board. The Union will take affirmative steps to discourage and prevent strike action against the Board by its members.

# ARTICLE IX - STEWARDS, ALTERNATE STEWARDS & DIVISIONAL CHAIRPERSONS

The Steward's responsibilities include the reasonable attempt by the Steward to insure that members of the Union are familiar with and adhere to the responsibilities imposed by this Agreement and by the reasonable work rules established by the Board from time to time in consultation with the Union.

Where necessary, in the interest of maintaining a continuously cooperative relationship between the Union and the Board, the Steward, or other Union officers who are directly involved in the grievance procedure shall be permitted a reasonable time to investigate and present grievances but shall

not receive any extra pay from the Board because of the performance of such duties. However, when the Steward or other Union officers who are directly involved in the grievance procedure are performing such authorized Steward's functions during working hours, they shall not suffer any loss of time or pay.

The Steward shall, to the extent possible, perform his/her duties as Steward without interference with his/her own job functions or the job functions of other employees. The Steward or Union officer shall not leave their job to conduct their duties as Steward without first securing the permission of their immediate supervisor. The failure of the supervisor to grant reasonable time off may be the subject of a grievance.

The number of Steward districts shall be that number negotiated between the Board and the Union.

A Steward who directs the Steward activities of other
Stewards shall be known as the Divisional Chairperson (Chief
Steward) and may exercise the duties of the Steward as described,
and under the conditions set forth above.

#### ARTICLE X -- STEWARD'S TRANSFER

Management recognizes that the transfer of a Steward from one location to another or from one shift to another may be advantageous to both the Union and the Board of Education. When such a situation arises, either party may request a Special Conference prior to any action.

### ARTICLE XI -- SPECIAL CONFERENCES

A. Special Conferences for important matters will be arranged between the Local Union President and the Board, or its designated representatives, upon request of either party.

Such meeting shall be between no more than five (5) and at least two (2) representatives of each party to the Agreement.

Arrangements for such Special Conferences shall be made in advance and an agenda of the matters to be taken up at the meeting shall be presented at the time the conference is requested. Matters taken up in Special Conferences, shall be confined to those included in the agenda. Such conferences shall be held within five (5) calendar days after the request is made. This time limit may be extended if mutually agreed to by both parties. The Board agrees to acknowledge requests for Special Conferences in writing.

Conferences shall be held between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m., unless some other time is mutually agreed upon. The members of the Union shall not lose time nor pay for time spent in such Special Conferences. This meeting may be attended by representatives of District Council 25.

B. The Union representatives may meet at a place designated by the Board on the Board's property for not more than one hour immediately preceding a meeting with the representatives of the Board if a written request has been made.

On matters which concern employees of more than one Local, the Special Conference will be arranged between the official representatives of District Council 25 and the Board's Office of Labor Affairs.

C. In the event the parties reach an Agreement on an item(s) as a result of a Special Conference, the Agreement shall be reduced to writing.

### ARTICLE XII -- GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

Should differences arise between the Board and the Union during the term of this Agreement as to the interpretation or application of the provisions of this Agreement, an earnest effort shall be made to resolve such differences promptly and the following procedure shall be adhered to:

### Section 1 - General

- a. Designated Stewards or Union officers who are directly involved in the grievance procedure shall not suffer any loss of time or pay while investigating and processing grievances.
- b. The Union may withdraw any grievance without prejudice at any step of the grievance procedure.
- c. The time limits may be extended if mutually agreed upon by the parties at any step of the grievance procedure.
- d. The "appropriate" administrative classification and/or personnel who shall answer the grievance at particular steps of the grievance procedure shall be specified in Appendix "B" herein.

### Section 2 - Presentation of Grievances

The employee with a problem shall first discuss the matter with the principal or administrator in-charge directly or his designee, and if he wishes, may be accompanied by the Union steward, with the objective of resolving the matter informally.

Should any difference arise as to the administration of the Agreement, it shall be settled in accordance with the procedures listed below.

- Step \*1 Principal or Administrator
  - 2 Area Superintendent
  - 3 General Superintendent or designee
  - 4 Arbitration

\*When the grievance is directed against the principal or Administrator in-charge, the procedure will begin at Step 2. At the grievance hearing, the person(s) bringing the charge(s) shall not be the person(s) who chairs the committee or enters into the final discussion for the decision. All decisions shall be in writing. The Board agrees to fair and just disciplinary procedures.

#### Step 1

Complaints, grievances, or disputes arising out of the operation and interpretation of this Agreement shall be presented to the Principal or the Administrator in-charge within ten (10) working days from the time that the event took place or within ten (10) working days of the conditions giving rise to the grievance.

#### Step 2

Grievances not satisfactorily settled at Step 1 may be presented in writing by the Union to the appropriate office accompanied by a copy of the decision at Step 1. The Area Superintendent, his designee or appropriate office shall investigate the grievance and provide an opportunity for the grievant and the Union representative(s) to be heard, at a time mutually agreeable to them, but no later than ten (10) working days following receipt of the appeal. The Area Superintendent, his designee or appropriate office shall give a written decision within five (5) working days after the conference.

#### Step 3

Grievances not satisfactorily settled at Step 2 may be presented in writing by the Union to the General Superintendent and shall be accompanied by a copy of the decision at Step 2. The General Superintendent or his designee shall investigate the grievance and provide an opportunity for the grievant and the Union representative to be heard, at a time mutually agreeable to them, but no later than ten (10) working days following receipt of the appeal. The General Superintendent or his designee shall give a written decision within five (5) working days after the hearing.

### Step 4 - Arbitration

Any unresolved grievance which relates to the interpretation, application or enforcemnt of any specific Article and Section of this Agreement, or any written supplementary Agreement which has been fully processed through the last step of the grievance procedure, may be submitted to arbitration. The parties shall attempt to select the arbitrator within fifteen (15) days of the decision to submit to arbitration. In the event the parties fail to agree upon an arbitrator, the selection of the arbitrator shall be made in accordance with the rules of the American Arbitration Association. The cost of arbitration shall be equally charged to and paid by the parties. aggrieved and his local representative shall not lose pay for time off the job while attending the arbitration proceedings. There shall be no appeal from the arbitrator's decision. Such decision shall be final and binding on the Union and its members, the employees or employees involved, and the Board.

### Section 3 - Time Limit on Grievances

Any grievance settlement shall be made in accordance with the terms and spirit of this Agreement.

Any grievance under this Agreement which is not filed in writing within thirty (30) employee working days after the grievance arises, shall not be considered a grievance. If the elements in the subject matter of the grievance lie within the jurisdiction of specific Board departments, e.g., Payroll, etc., the grievance steps may be shortened or eliminated to bring the grievance to that department's immediate attention, if mutually agreed to by the parties.

Any grievance not appealed in writing from a decision in the first two (2) steps under the Grievance Procedure to the next step within ten (10) working days or from a decision at the third step within thirty (30) calendar days shall be considered settled on the basis of the last answer.

These time limits may be extended by mutual agreement by both parties..

### ARTICLE XIII -- DISCHARGE, SUSPENSION AND DEMOTION

- A. The Board agrees to notify, in writing, the Union President or designee of the recommendation to discharge, suspend, or demote an employee.
- B. Should the discharged, suspended or demoted employee or the Union representative consider the discharge, suspension or demotion to be improper, a written grievance may be submitted at Step 3 of the grievance procedure within five (5) working days by the Union.

The Board agrees to fair and just disciplinary procedures.

# ARTICLE XIV -- COMPUTATION OF BACK WAGES AND OVERPAYMENTS

A. No claim for back wages shall exceed the amount of wages the employee would otherwise have earned at his regular rate of pay.

In computing the amount of back wages to be paid by the Board in settlement of any back wage claim, the Board may deduct an amount equal to the interim earnings of the employee from any source so that the earnings of the employee during the back wage period will not exceed the earnings the employee would have received from the Board had he been employed by the Board at his regular rate of pay.

B. In the event an employee in this bargaining unit receives wages or other monies to which he is not entitled and which are payments or overpayments of such wages or monies, the Board agrees that except in unusual circumstances, it shall make arrangements with the employee for repayment to the Board in a manner which will minimize unusual hardship to such employee. The parties recognize that it shall be the continued responsibility of the employee to immediately notify the Board upon discovery of such payment or overpayment in order that the Board may promptly rectify the discrepancy.

### ARTICLE XV -- SENIORITY

### Section 1 - Probationary Employees

a. Employees appointed to regular positions in the unit shall be considered probationary employees for the

first 120 calendar days of employment. When an employee has satisfactorily completed the probationary period, he shall be entered on the seniority list of the unit and shall rank, for seniority puposes, from the effective date of his appointment. There shall be no seniority among probationary employees.

b. The Union shall represent probationary employees for the purpose of collective bargaining in respect to rates of pay, wages, hours of employment, and other conditions of employment as set forth in Article III of this Agreement, except employees discharged and/or disciplined for other than Union activity.

#### Section 2

Seniority shall be on a classification basis in accordance with the employees' last date of appointment to a regular position. When there is complete elimination of a classification resulting in the termination of employees within said classification, those terminated employees shall receive priority in the filling of vacant positions in the bargaining unit.

Application must be made within seven calendar days of receive priority. Employees applying for the new positions must meet all of the qualifications as stated in the job description. Upon appointment or assignment to the new position, the employees must serve the normal probationary period and are subject to all promotional procedures.

#### Section 3 - Seniority of Officers and Stewards

- in the Grievance Procedure, shall be retained in their respective shifts and respective location according to their classification.
- b. In the event the classification is eliminated in the said work location and shift and a dispute arises as to where the officers, stewards or designated representative shall be assigned, the dispute will be resolved in accordance with the Special Conference language of this Agreement.
- c. Notwithstanding their actual position on the seniority list, Stewards shall, in the event of a layoff of any type, be continued at work as long as there is a job in their group classification which they can perform and after a layoff shall be recalled to work on the first open job in their group classification which they can perform.
- d. In the event a layoff is necessary, notwithstanding their actual seniority, the following Local Union Officers, in the order in which their offices are listed below, shall continue to work in their group classification which they can perform and are willing to perform.

President

Executive Vice President

Vice President
Secretary-Treasurer
Recording Secretary
Corresponding Secretary
Divisional Chairman or Chief Steward

- e. The rights of the above officers to be retained is superior to the rights of Stewards set forth in "c" above.
- f. The above mentioned officers may, upon their request, be assigned to work days unless, as determined by the Board, this assignment adversely affects operations wherever such a position exists.
- g. An updated seniority list will be supplied to the Union at the beginning of each semester. Such list will show the names, locations, job classifications and addresses of all employees in the unit, except that the address shall be deleted for any employee in the bargaining unit who shall, in writing, make a request to the Board for such deletion.

#### Section 4 - Housekeeping Employees

Where there is no rotation in a building or location, the most senior employee at the site shall have the right to exercise seniority whenever a vacancy occurs at that site.

The Housekeeping Department will be informed by the most senior employee in the building of his/her desire to move into a

vacancy that might occur. If the most senior employee refuses to move, it will be offered to the next most senior employee and so forth.

### Section 5 - Loss of Seniority

An employee shall lose seniority for the following reasons only:

- a. The employee quits.
- b. The employee is discharged and the discharge is not reversed through the procedure set forth in this Agreeement.
- c. The employee is absent for five (5) consecutive working days without notifying the Board. The Board may consider and make an exception to this rule in appropriate cases. After such absence, the Board will send written notification by certified mail to the employee at the last known address, with a copy to the Union, that he/she has lost his/her seniority; and his/her employment has been terminated. If the disposition made of any case is not satisfactory, the matter shall be referred to the Grievance Procedure.
- d. If the employee does not return to work when recalled from layoff as set forth in the Recall Procedure of this Agreement.
- e. Return from sick leave and leaves of absence will be treated the same as "c" above.
- f. The employee retires under the terms of any retirement program.

### Section 6 - Retention of Seniority

An employee who voluntarily terminates employment with the Board of Education may, within ninety (90) calendar days of that termination, return to employment with the Board without suffering loss of unit or classification seniority.

### ARTICLE XVI -- LAYOFF AND RECALL

- A. The word "layoff" means a reduction in the working force due to a decrease in work or lack of funds.
- B. If it becomes necessary for a layoff, the following procedure will be used:

Temporary employees will be laid off first:

Probationary employees next; then seniority employees
will be laid off according to seniority, as defined in
Article XV and the ability to do the remaining work.

In proper cases, exceptions may be made. Disposition of these will be a proper matter for Special Conference; and if not resolved, it shall then be subject to the Appeal Board step of the Grievance Procedure.

c. Employees to be laid off will have at least seven (7) calendar days notice of layoff. The Local Union Secretary shall receive a list from the Board of employees being laid off on the same date the notices are issued to the employees. D. When the work force is increased after a layoff, employees will be recalled according to seniority as defined in Article XIII. Notice of recall shall be sent to the employee at his last known address by registered or certified mail, with a copy to the Union. If an employee fails to report for work within ten (10) working days from the date of mailing of notice of recall, he shall be considered to have quit. In proper cases, exceptions may be made.

### ARTICLE XVII -- HOLIDAY PROVISIONS

- A. Ten-month employees will be paid straight time for all unworked hours of their regularly assigned eight (8) hour shift for the following eight (8) holidays: Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, Day after Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day, New Year's Day, Martin Luther King's Birthday, Memorial Day and Good Friday in each year.
- B. Employees who are less than 12-month employees, if assigned the additional work of summer school and also if they work the day after July 4, will be paid for the July 4 holiday.
- C. Twelve-month employees shall be entitled to nine (9) holidays, which shall include the same holidays referred to above and Independence Day.

### ARTICLE XVIII -- EVALUATION

The Employer shall evaluate employees at least once a year using Form 4268. The employee shall receive a copy of each

evaluation. If an employee is marked unsatisfactory, the employee may grieve the evaluation.

Before an employee is rated unsatisfactory in performance, the following steps shall have been taken.

- a. The appropriate school/location administrator/
  supervisor or designee shall have observed the
  employee's work performance or the results thereof at
  least twice with the employee's awareness.
- b. A central administrator/supervisor shall have observed the employee's work performance or the results thereof at least twice.
- c. After the observation referred to in <u>a</u> and <u>b</u> above have occurred, a conference between the employee, the central administrator/supervisor and at least one school/location administrator/supervisor as named in <u>a</u> above shall be held to put the employee on notice that his/her work is unsatisfactory and to discuss with him/her ways in which he/she can improve. The appropriate school/location administrator/supervisor and the employee shall put in writing a summary of such conference. Copies shall be exchanged.
- d. Within a thirty day trial period, both the school/ location administrator/supervisor and administrator/ supervisor from the central offices shall visit the employee's school and/or location to determine if the recommendations made above are being implemented. If

the efforts of the school/location administrator/
supervisor and employee fail to raise the employee's
performance to a satisfactory level, the local
administrator/supervisor and the central administrator/
supervisor shall each fill out a Form \_\_\_\_\_, Report of
Unsatisfactory Service.

- e. Employees who have been rated unsatisfactory in accordance with the procedure outlined above, will have that report forwarded to their departmental heads for review. For the purpose of this article, the departmental heads shall be as follows:
  - Housekeeping Housekeeping Suerintendent or designee
  - 2. Warehouses Assistant Director or designee
  - 3. Food Service Director or designee
  - 4. Terminals Assistant Director or designee
  - 5. School Technicians Assistant Director
  - 6. Special Education Assistant Director or designee The departmental head shall schedule a meeting with the employee not later than thirty (30) days after receipt of the unsatisfactory rating. As a result of the meeting, the departmental head shall make a recommendation to the Office of Personnel, with a copy to the employee, for action that could include termination.

- f. If the recommendation is not satisfactory to the Union, the matter may be referred to Step 3 of the Grievance Procedure.
  - At every stage of the above procedure, the employee shall have the right to Union representation, if the employee chooses.
- g. The use of the above procedure does not replace in any way the article on <u>Discharge</u> and <u>Suspension</u> in the Agreement.

### ARTICLE XIX -- TRANSFERS AND PROMOTIONS

- A. If for any reason an employee is transferred or promoted to a position not included in the bargaining unit, and is thereafter transferred back to a position within the bargaining unit, he shall return to the bargaining unit with full seniority rights and benefits, including the seniority he should have accumulated had he not been transferred out of the bargaining unit.
- B. If, and when, operations or divisions or fractions thereof are transferred from one location to another, employees affected will be given the opportunity to transfer within their classifications (to the new location) on the basis of seniority, desire, and ability.
- C. In the event of a newly created position within the bargaining unit, present employees shall be given the opportunity to transfer on the basis of seniority and the ability to perform the work of the new position. In such

- cases, all newly created positions shall be posted in a conspicuous place in each building in the school district where members of the bargaining unit are employed at least fourteen (14) calendar days prior to the filling of such newly created positions.
- D. When vacancies occur within a division, such vacancies shall be posted within seven (7) days after vacancies occur, and shall be posted for a period of fourteen (14) days prior to filling the vacancy. Employees seeking location or shift transfers will be offered a transfer to the location or shift of their preference where a vacancy exists before a promotion is made. These transfers will be made in accordance with seniority and the ability to perform the work. Absent unusual circumstances, budgeted vacancies will be filled within seventy-five (75) days of their occurrence.
- E. If there is any <u>foreseeable</u> movement of work or discontinuance of operation not covered in this Article, the Union shall be notified and such movement or discontinuance shall be discussed with the Union in order to provide for protection of the seniority of the employees involved.
- F. Promotional procedures governing promotions in each separate division shall be a part of supplementary agreement, where appropriate. Wherever feasible, these promotional procedures shall provide for conditions governing promotion from one division to another.

#### ARTICLE XX -- VACATIONS AND OFF DAYS

A. All regular employees covered by this Agreement shall receive vacation or off days, whichever shall apply, with pay. Vacation or off days, whichever shall apply, may not be taken until after sixteen (16) weeks of employment.

Vacation must be taken during the year earned, or in the following year.

All 12-month employees shall accrue vacation credits as follows:

Lei	ıgt	h c	of Service	1	_		cation Exceed	Form	nula		
0	-	1	year	-	1	1	week	.19	bi-weekly	pay	period
1	-	5	years	-	2	1	weeks	.38	bi-weekly	pay	period
6	-	10	years	-	3	3	weeks	.57	bi-weekly	pay	period
11	-	19	years	-	4	-	weeks	.77	bi-weekly	pay	period
20	01	c mo	ore	_	5	,	weeks	.95	bi-weekly	pay	period

- a. Those employees presently receiving more than one or two weeks of vacation will not be adversely affected due to the change in the above formula.
- b. The Board will not be required to furnish substitutes or overtime service during the employee's vacation absences except in those instances where previous practice so provided. All 10-month employees and 48 week teacher aides shall accrue off day credits at the rate of .57 days for each two weeks of service.
- B. Vacations will, as far as possible, be granted on the basis of the desires of the employee, seniority, and the efficient

- operation of the division and in accordance with the divisional supplemental agreements, as applicable.
- C. Vacations will be taken in a period of consecutive days.

  Vacations may be split into one or more weeks, provided such scheduling does not unreasonably interfere with operations.
- D. When a holiday is observed by the Board during a scheduled vacation, the vacation will be extended one day continuous with the vacation.
- E. If an employee becomes ill and is under the care of a duly licensed physician during his vacation, his/her vacation will be re-scheduled.
- F. An employee shall not lose accrued vacation days if he/she is not able to take a vacation during any fiscal year because of extended illness of twenty-five (25) working days or more in the same fiscal year. During any such illness, the employee shall have the right to request his absence be charged to his sick bank or to his accrued vacation.
- G. Employees in the bargaining unit with 15 or more years of seniority, or 200 days in their sick bank, who earn vacation days, shall be eligible for bonus vacation days based upon unused sick leave in the following manner.

If at the end of the fiscal year the employee has 14 or more unused sick days, the employee shall receive 3 additional vacation days with pay. If at the end of the fiscal year the employee has 12 or 13 unused sick days, the employee shall receive 2 additional vacation days with pay. If at the end of the fiscal year the

employee has 9, 10 or 11 unused sick days, the employee shall receive 1 additional vacation day with pay. All calculations shall be made on June 30 of any fiscal year. All days earned between July 1, and June 30, shall be used only after June 30 of that fiscal year.

H. All employees' off day hours will be consistent with the number of hours they regularly work.

### ARTICLE XXI -- GENERAL LEAVE POLICY

### A. Sick Leave - Accural Rate:

Twelve-month Employees:

Twelve-month employees and 48 week teacher aides in this unit shall receive sick leave at the rate of 17 days a year, to be earned at the rate of .65 days for each bi-weekly pay period for which the employee is paid with a limit of 200 days.

Ten-month Employees:

Ten-month employees in this unit shall receive sick leave at the rate of 15 days a year, to be earned at the rate of .76 days for each bi-weekly pay period for which the employee is paid with a limit of 200 days.

B. Sick Leave - Borrowing:

An employee who has used his/her sick bank may, in case of extended illness, borrow up to 15 or 17 days, whichever is applicable, with a promissory note. Medical proof of illness is required. These days will be deducted from accrued sick days earned in the current or following school

year, whichever is applicable. Management has the sole discretion in determining how many days, if any, may be advanced under this provision.

#### C. Catastrophe Bank:

When an employee's sick leave bank has reached the current allowable maximum as set forth in this Agreement, there shall be established a "Catastrophe Bank" into which all days over the maximum earned, commencing with the first pay period of the first month after this Agreement is approved by the Board, shall be placed. When an employee has used all days accumulated in his/her sick bank for an illness extending more than six months, he/she may thereafter draw from his/her "Catastrophe Bank" to the extent he/she had made contribution to said bank. The employer may require medical evidence of the illness/disability.

If an employee is unable to work as a result of a compensable injury, the employees may utilize "Catastrophe Bank" sick leave days to maintain regular gross earnings without affecting the employee's regular sick leave bank.

- D. Leaves of absence without pay may be granted for reasonable periods for the purposes listed below:
  - Illness (with seniority accruing for a period of leave not exceeding two (2) years).
  - 2. Maternity (See Appendix C Board Maternity Policy).
  - Injury on the job (with seniority accruing for the entire period of leave).

- 4. Training relating to an employee's regular duties in an approved educational institution. (Seniority shall not accrue during period of leave).
- 5. Peace Corps term (Seniority shall not accrue during period of leave). The employee's return to work shall be governed by existing procedures as set forth in the Administrative Handbook.
- E. Leaves may be granted at the discretion of the Board for reasons other than those listed above when they are deemed beneficial to the Board. Such leaves granted, except for maternity leaves, may be extended for periods up to four (4) years.

Probationary employees shall not be eligible for leaves of absence other than military leaves.

- F. Members of the Union elected to Local Union positions or selected by the Union to do work which takes them from their employment shall, at the written request of the Union, be considered for leaves of absence for periods not to exceed two (2) years or the term of office, whichever may be shorter, and upon their return shall be re-employed with accumulated seniority. Such leaves of absence may be renewed upon the request of the employee.
- G. An employee who has filed a Form 4043, Request for Personal Business Leave, indicating the date of his/her wedding and the period of the leave requested, may charge to sick leave

those working days which fall within seven (7) consecutive calendar days including and subsequent to the wedding day. Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays within a seven (7) day period are counted as a part of this limit.

- H. Veterans who are reinstated as employees in the bargaining unit, in accordance with the Universal Military Training Act, as amended, and other applicable laws and regulations, and remain in the employ of the Board for at least one year after reinstatement, will be eligible to apply for leave of absence without pay for a period not to exceed a period equal to their seniority in order to attend school full-time under applicable federal laws in effect on the date of this Agreement. The seniority rights of such employees shall be protected but shall not accrue during the leave of absence.
- I. Members of this bargaining unit who have been granted Professional Service Leaves shall be eligible at their own (or Union's) expense for those fringe benefits generally offered to this bargaining unit. This eligibility shall be conditional to the agreement of the private carrier when such agreement is necessary.

A member who is on Professional Service Leave of Absence shall be entitled to return to a position of like status and pay to that he/she left immediately before going on Professional Service Leave, at the expiration of the leave, subject to the seniority provisions of this Agreement.

#### ARTICLE XXII -- FUNERAL LEAVE

Absence due to death of a member of the immediate family may be charged to sick leave to the extent of one (1) to five (5) scheduled working days as necessary for each death.

- A. Included in immediate family membership: husband, wife, children, father, mother, grandfather, grandmother, brothers, sisters, mother-in-law, father-in-law, and any other relative or non-relative living and making his/her home in the household of the employee.
- B. The working days allowed must be consecutive scheduled working days:
  - If employee works on day of death: The days allowed do not include day of death, but begin with the first scheduled working day immediately following the day of death.
  - 2. If day of death is a scheduled work day and the employee does not work on that day: The days allowed begin with and include the day of death.
  - 3. If day of death is not a scheduled work day or occurs during the vacation periods: The days allowed are those scheduled working days (or actual working days following vacation period) which fall within seven (7) consecutive calendar days including day of death.

### ARTICLE XXIII -- VETERANS

A. The re-employment rights of returning employees from a military leave will be equal to or greater than applicable

laws and regulations.

- B. Any employee who enters into active service in the Armed Forces of the United States who, upon termination of such service, receives a discharge other than dishonorable and is still qualified to perform his/her prior duties with the Board, shall be offered re-employment in his/her previous position or a position of like seniority, status and pay, provided the employee makes application to return to work within ninety (90) days after the date of discharage.

  Special consideration may be given in the case of continuing hospitalization following discharge.
- C. A probationary employee who enters the Armed Forces of the United States and meets the foregoing requirements must, upon their return, complete the probationary period.
- D. Individuals on the eligibility register who, because they are drafted into the service of the Armed Forces of the United States, are unable to report for assignment when their position is reached, shall, upon discharge other than dishonorable and if still qualified for said position, and a position is available, be placed in a position of equal status. Employees, when placed under these conditions, shall be required to serve the probationary period in order to attain seniority status.
- E. Employees who are in some branch of the Armed Forces Reserve or the National Guard will be paid the difference between their reserve pay and their regular pay with the School

District when they are on full-time active duty in the Reserve or National guard, provided proof of service and pay is submitted. A maximum of two (2) weeks per year is the normal limit. Consideration will be given for unusual circumstances.

#### ARITCLE XXIV -- COMMUNICABLE DISEASES

The sick leave bank of members of this bargaining unit employed in schools shall not be charged for necessary absences up to five (5) days resulting from the following childhood diseases: chickenpox, measles, mumps, diphtheria, whooping cough, impetigo. The statement of a licensed physician shall be required as proof of the cause of such absence.

#### ARTICLE XXV -- SCHOOL RELATED ASSAULTS

Absences resulting from school related assaults shall not be charged against sick leave bank although the regular gross earnings of the employee shall be maintained.

#### ARTICLE XXVI -- RATES OF NEW JOBS

When a new job is placed in the bargaining unit and cannot be properly placed in an existing classification, the Board shall notify the Union prior to establishing a classification and rate structure. In the event the Union does not agree that the description and rate are proper, it shall be subject to negotiation.

#### ARTICLE XXVII -- SAFETY COMMITTEE

A Safety Committee of employees and Board representatives is hereby established. This Committee will include the Steward and shall meet regularly for the purpose of making recommendations to the Board.

#### ARTICLE -- XXVIII -- POSTING OF UNION NOTICES

The Board shall provide space in each building on a bulletin board which shall be used exclusively by Unions for posting notices pertaining to the conduct of their affairs.

A copy of all such notices will be forwarded to the General Superintendent or his designated representative.

#### ARTICLE XXIX -- NOTICES TO UNION

Copies of all directives affecting employees within the jurisdiction of the Union shall be sent to the Union, including minutes of the official proceedings of the Board.

Copies of all personnel actions (promotions, transfers, demotions, layoff, discipline or discharge) shall be sent to the employee and the Union.

The Board will supply the Union with a list of the names, addresses, file numbers and job locations of new employees, except that the address shall be deleted for any employee in the bargaining unit who shall in writing make a request to the Board for such deletion.

### ARTICLE XXX -- JURY DUTY

An employee who is absent because he/she is performing jury duty in a state or federal court shall be paid the difference, if any, between his/her regular salary and remuneration received as a juror for a period not to exceed sixty (60) days in any calendar year.

### ARTICLE XXXI -- SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENTS

The parties agree that any prospective Supplemental Agreements involving non-economic matters not covered herein and peculiar to a specific department, shall become a part of this Agreement.

### school Technicians

- a. Meetings of school technicians with the supervisor of school technicians shall be held as needed. The supervisor shall set the date, time and place of the meeting.
- b. Except in emergency situations, school technicians shall not be assigned duties normally performed by teachers or administrators.
- c. Working Hours In accordance with past practice, school technicians work eight (8) hours per day. Included in the eight (8) hours is a lunch time of one-half (1/2) hour in duration, during which time the technician is on call if necessary.

### JOINT COMMITTEE

It is the desire of the parties to design an equitable Sick Bank Incentive Plan that will reduce cost and reward good attendance. A joint Union/Board Committee shall be established upon the request of either party to construct such a plan. Recommendations from the committee shall be presented to the Board for implementation. No changes will be implemented unless it is mutually agreed upon by the parties.

### 3. REIMBURSEMENT FOR TRANSPORTATION COSTS (REGULAR AND PART-TIME BUS ATTENDANTS)

Effective August, 1987, the Board will no longer provide bus tickets to regular part-time bus attendants.

Regular part-time bus attendants shall be compensated for their costs of transportation based on the following attendance records during the school year:

- a. If at the end of the school year not more than four (4) days have been used from his/her illness bank, a payment of \$300 will be made.
- b. If at the end of the school year not more than seven (7) days have been used from the illness bank, a payment of \$250 will be made.
- c. If at the end of the school year not more than ten (10) days have been used from the illness bank, a payment of \$200 will be made.

- d. Employees working at least one hundred fifty (150) days shall receive \$150.
- e. All employees' Off Day hours and Sick Leave hours will be consistent with the number of hours they regularly work.

### ARTICLE XXXII -- UNION MEMBERSHIP, AGENCY SHOP AND DUES DEDUCTION

A. Employees covered by this Agreement at the time it becomes effective and who, at that time, are members of the Union shall be required as a condition of continued employment to continue membership in the Union for the duration of this Agreement.

The Board shall deduct from the pay of each employee from whom it receives an authorization to do so, the required amount of fees for payment of Union dues and/or initiation fees.

Such fees, accompanied by a list of employees from whom they have been deducted, and the amount, shall be forwarded to the Union no later than forty (40) days after the deductions have been made.

The Union will notify the Board forty (40) days prior to any change in such dues and/or initiation fees.

### B. AGENCY SHOP

- 1. All employees employed in the bargaining unit or who become employees in the bargaining unit who are not already members of the Union, shall within sixty (60) days of the effective date of this provision, or within sixty (60) days of the date of hire by the Board, whichever is later, become members or in the alternative, shall within sixty (60) days of the effective date of this provision or within sixty (60) days of their date of hire by the Board, whichever is later, as a condition of employment, pay to the Union each month a service fee in an amount equal to the regular monthly Union membership dues uniformly required of employees of the Board who are members. This provision is effective July 1, 1969 for twelve (12) month employees and is effective September 2, 1969 for ten (10) month employees.
- 2. An employee who shall tender or authorize the deduction of membership dues (or service fees) uniformly required as a condition of acquiring or obtaining membership in the Union, shall be deemed to meet the conditions of this Article so long as the employee is not more than sixty (60) days in arrears of payment of such dues (or fees).
- 3. The Board shall be notified, in writing, by the Union of any employee who is sixty (60) days in arrears in payment of such dues (or fees).

- 4. If any provision of this Article is invalid under Federal or State law, said provision shall be modified to comply with the requirements of said Federal or State law.
- 5. The Union agrees that in the event of litigation against the Board, its agents or employees arising out of this provision, the Union will co-defend and indemnify and hold harmless the Board, its agents or employees for any monetary award arising out of such litigation.

### ARTICLE XXXIII -- TAILGATE DELIVERIES

The parties hereby agree that deliveries to schools shall continue to be made in accordance with the usual instructions to the vendors by the Purchasing Department. (All deliveries of equipment and/or materials purchased on bids by the Board shall be delivered inside the building.)

When materials and supplies are delivered to schools or offices by vendors or common carriers, it will be the responsibility of all building custodial staff, excluding cleaners and locker room attendants, to move said cartons weighing up to 50 pounds each from the truck tailgate or sidewalk into the building. Hand trucks will be available at each school for this purpose.

It is recognized that school staff will not be expected to move certain large and heavy items such as machinery, furniture,

drums of liquid, etc., in this fashion. It is further recognized that deliveries made by Board of Education vehicles will continue to be made in the same manner, i.e., inside the building.

### ARTICLE XXXIV -- SNOW EMERGENCY DAY OR DAYS ONLY

In the event a Snow Emergency Day or half-day is declared by the General Superintendent or his designee, assistant custodians will be expected to report to their assigned locations.

Double time will be paid to all assistant custodians who work on the above referred to day. The payment of double time to assistant custodians who report and work on a Snow Emergency Day will constitute full payment for work on such day/days.

If any other employees in this unit are ordered to report to work after the emergency day has been declared, these employees will also be eligible for double time pay in the same manner as those above.

### Emergency Weather Conditions -- Ten Month Employees:

- A. Scheduled days of student attendance that are cancelled because of conditions not within the control of authorities shall be rescheduled when the district is unable to meet the State mandatory requirements.
- B. When the cancelled days become less than the State requirement for student attendance, ten-month employees shall not be paid for those days. Those days will be rescheduled with employees being paid the pay period following the make-up days.

C. Rescheduling of days shall not affect annual salary, compensation or other benefits provided within this Collective Bargaining Agreement.

### ARTICLE XXXV -- SUMMER WORK

The parties agree that regular employees of this bargaining unit shall be given preference with respect to summer assignments and that such assignments shall be made in accordance with seniority; provided that requests for summer assignments are received by the department involved, on or prior to the deadline date when such requests must be submitted.

Locker Room Attendants and Bus Attendants who have in the past been assigned to work Summer Recreation Programs shall receive by mail a form requesting his or her desire to be assigned to the school last worked. Such form shall be returned to the appropriate office within the indicated deadline period. Pursuant to such request and approval, such employees shall report directly to the assigned school on the first day of work.

S.M.U.L.T. Aides who work the regular 39-week school year, shall be given first preference for summer work in that position. Any vacancies which remain, shall be filled by other members of the bargaining unit and such assignments shall be made in accordance with seniority, provided that requests have been received by the Non-Instructional Personnel Unit on or prior to the deadline date when such requests must be submitted.

### ARTICLE XXXVI -- SUMMER CLEANING

Custodians or other Housekeeping personnel assigned to the daily cleaning of spaces used by programs in school buildings during the summer period will be given a general guideline of their areas of responsibility.

The Housekeeping Department agrees to evaluate each request received from a classified custodian for additional assistance to satisfactorily complete summer building cleaning and to arrange for such assistance where it is felt to be needed.

### ARTICLE XXXVII -- COPY OF AGREEMENT

The Board will provide a memeographed copy of this Agreement for each employee in the Unit.

### ARTICLE XXXVIII -- WAGES

- 1. Employees on the payroll as of January 1, 1989, and still on the payroll January 1, 1990, shall receive a \$300 lump sum payment immediately following Union ratification and Board approval of this Agreement. (This is a one-time payment not added to the base.)
- Effective January 1, 1990, wages shall be increased by six (6%) percent.
- 3. For the period of January 1, 1991 January 3, 1993, the parties shall meet for the purpose of negotiating only wages and fringe benefits.

### ARTICLE XXXIX -- INSURANCE: HOSPITALIZATION; LIFE; DENTAL OPTION

Effective January, 1978, the health insurance subsidy for employees in this bargaining unit will be fully paid by the Board.

All non-emergency hospital admissions will be pre-authorized by the Health Plan Administrator. Length of stay will also be pre-determined and monitored for those hospital admissions that are approved. Hospital stay shall be extended when medically necesary.

Effective July 1, 1981 - \$3.00 Drug Rider

Effective July 1, 1983 - dental insurance for employee only

Effective January 4, 1986 - the present life insurance

policy shall be increased from \$5,000 to \$10,000 for

all bargaining unit members

- Effective January 4, 1985 the life insurance program for employees retiring after January 4, 1985, shall be increased from the present \$350.00 policy to a \$1,000.00 policy
- Effective November 1, 1987 the Board shall provide fullfamily optical coverage for all bargaining unit members. The Board shall select the carrier(s).
- Effective July 1, 1990 emergency sustitutes who are available five days per week and are willing to serve in any school in the system as assigned (Regular

Emergency Substitutes) shall receive health insurance (employee only). Carrier is to be determined. Article XVII--Holiday Provisions shall also be applicable for Regular Emergency Substitutes.

### ARTICLE XL -- RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTION

Effective July 1, 1977, the Board shall continue to make a 5% contribution to the State of Michigan Employees' Retirement System for members of this bargaining unit.

### ARTICLE XLI -- SUBSTITUTE - OVERTIME SERVICE POLICY AMENDMENTS

The contractual requirements pertaining to the furnishing of substitute-overtime service when an employee is absent are amended as follows.

- 1. If an absent employee does not notify the school or job location office by 8:15 a.m. in case of day-shift employees and 10:30 a.m. in case of afternoon-shift employees, that the employee will be absent that day, the head custodian shall receive approval from Housekeeping for the number of substitute or overtime hours to be worked in replacement of the absent employee.
- 2. If the employee doesn't follow existing reporting procedures concerning the employee's absence from work, the employee will be considered as on Leave Without Pay and will receive no pay for such time not worked,

unless the employee is able to produce evidence of his or her inability to call in on time to the satisfaction of the Superintendent of Housekeeping.

3. In those cases where substitute-overtime provisions apply and overtime is required because no substitutes are available, the first opportunity for overtime will be given to those employees in the same building to which the absent employee is assigned who are in the same job classification as the absent employee and, thereafter, if necessary, to employees in the same job classification anywhere in the Detroit Public School System.

If no employee in the absent employee's job classification is available, overtime will then be available to employees in the next higher classification in the same order of preference.

Substitutes or overtime will be provided for OCC and Local 345 personnel on the first day of absence beginning February 1, 1990.

### ARTICLE XLII -- UNIFORM ALLOWANCE

Effective the first full pay period in January 1980, January 1981, and also January 1983, thirty dollars (\$30.00) per year clothing allowance shall be paid to all Food Service employees required to wear uniforms.

Beginning the first full pay period in January 1985, the clothing allowance for Food Service employees now receiving same shall be increased from the present \$30.00 per year to \$45.00 per year. Effective January 1986, the amount shall be increased to \$60.00 per year.

### ARTICLE XLIII - RESIDENCY

Effective November 14, 1978, all members new to the bargaining unit shall establish and maintain residency within the City of Detroit as a condition of employment.

### ARTICLE XLIV -- PERSONAL PROPERTY LOSS

Effective January 4, 1985, a fund in the amount of \$2,000 shall be established from which members of the bargaining unit may be reimbursed for approved claims in an amount not to exceed \$100 per bargaining unit member for personal property loss due to theft, burning or willful or malicious damage. Personal property is defined as anything normally worn or carried into the building by the member of the bargaining unit but shall not include cash. Personal property shall also not include tools. All claims shall be submitted promptly but not later than ten (10) days subsequent to the occurrence and shall be considered at the close of the fiscal year. A determination shall be made regarding the amount to be paid on each claim. In making a determination, the extent to which the claimant is entitled to be reimbursed from other sources for said loss shall be considered. In the event that the total approved claims exceed \$2,000, the

affected bargaining unit members shall be reimbursed on a prorated basis.

### ARTICLE XLV -- MISCELLANEOUS

- A. 1. After an employee agrees to be reclassified from Locker Room Attendant to Assistant Custodian, and finds within the first one-hundred twenty (120) days that the job of Assistant Custodian is beyond his/her ability to handle, the employee will be returned to his/her former position as a Locker Room Attendant without any penalties. Once a Locker Room Attendant position becomes an Assistant Custodian position; after the one-hundred twenty (120) day grace period, the position will remain as Assistant Custodian.
  - 2. Bus Attendants tentative long-day short-day schedules, as well as tentative schedules indicating half-day school sessions, will be provided to Bus Attendants as early in September as possible.

It is understood that the above schedules are subject to revision should conditions arise that are beyond the control of the parties involved.

For the purpose of selecting routes on the basis of seniority, special education routes requiring Bus Attendants will be posted twice a year; October and April.

### 3. Cleaners

- a. When a position is eliminated due to re-survey and it becomes necessary to transfer an employee, the transfer shall be made at the beginning of the next pay period.
- b. The Custodian will lock and secure the building, to the degree so as to be safe for the Cleaners on duty.

### 4. Food Service

- a. The director of Food Service will review, in a Special Conference, the questions of:
  - Allowing present food service employees to work an additional hour in those locations where the need arises.
  - The promotional program as it relates to rates of pay for trainees.
- b. When a food service employee in the bargaining unit is assigned to fill an illness vacancy of an anticipated length of at least forty-five (45) consecutive working days, and that position carries a higher wage classification, the employee shall receive "acting" status and an appropriate salary adjustment, retroactive to the first date of assignment in the position.

### School Technicians

The school technician is usually assigned to one

(1) building or location. Should movement between the

physical plants or locations become necessary after the employee reaches his/her building or location, the school technician shall receive mileage compensation at a rate of twenty-one (.21¢) cents per mile with a cap of 600 miles per month.

### 6. Vacation

Any member of this bargaining unit who is promoted or reclassified to a 12-month position with no break in service will accrue vacation credits from the first date appointed by the Board with rates set according to vacation formula listed in Article XX.

### B. CURRENT SUBSTITUTES OR OVERTIME PROCEDURE

Upon notification of the intended absence of any regularly assigned custodial employee or any E.S. custodial employee filling a regular position, the request for an E.S. replacement is to be directed to the Custodial Substitute Office.

If the personnel of the Custodial Substitute Office indicate that they are unable to assign an E.S. Assistant Custodian or an E.S. Cleaner, E.S. Locker Room Attendant, E.S. Elevator Operator to fill the position, a request may be made for the authorization of overtime for a custodial employee assigned to the building to perform the housekeeping duties of the absent employee. Such requests are to be made to the Housekeeping Office of the School Housing Division. This office is under the direction of the

Superintendent of Housekeeping. Authority will be granted, in accordance with the following schedule:

- 8 Hour Positions 7 Hours of Overtime
- 7 Hour Positions 6 Hours of Overtime
- 6 Hour Positions 5 Hours of Overtime
- 5 Hour Positions 4 Hours of Overtime

The head custodian is held responsible for keeping an up-to-date record of the amount of overtime offered to each employee assigned to the building and of the amount worked by each. The head custodian is also held responsible for having such a record available for review at all times. The record shall show that all authorized overtime has been divided as equally as possible between all regular custodial employees assigned to the building. When no custodial employee assigned to the building is available to work authorized overtime, an effort will be made by the Housekeeping Office to locate a custodial employee from another building to take overtime.

In all situations, the head custodian is held responsible for using the personnel available to him to the best advantage in terms of overall building sanitation. The head custodian is authorized and expected to use employees as needed in the building regardless of work schedules. No employee is to refuse to comply with a work assignment in any part of a building within his/her assigned working hours.

### C. EQUALIZATION OF OVERTIME

The parties agree that overtime hours shall be divided as equally as possible among all employees in the bargaining unit by classification within a building. Any employee who feels that such overtime has not been divided equally shall have the right to check the overtime record which shall be kept and posted by the person who is normally responsible for assigning overtime hours.

Whenever overtime is required, the employee with the least number of overtime hours in that classification shall be offered such overtime. If such employee refuses the overtime assignment, the next employee with the least number of overtime hours shall be offered the overtime assignment and so on. Where overtime is not worked because the employee was unavailable or has refused, the employee will be charged the average number of overtime hours of the employees working such overtime.

Overtime hours allocated by classification which are refused by employees in that classification may be worked by employees in other classifications, provided that such other employee has the ability to perform the work.

### ARTICLE XLVI -- ADDITIONAL LOCKER ROOM SERVICE

In the event that situations arise within a school which require use (swimming, etc.) of the locker room outside of regular school hours, the locker room attendant in the school or

the appropriate Steward will report the nature and extent of the activity to the Housekeeping Department. Pursuant to such report, Housekeeping Department personnel shall be assigned to cover such report, Housekeeping Department personnel shall be assigned to cover such activity. Automatic assignments of additional locker room service will be covered in appropriate supplemental agreements.

### ARTICLE XLVII -- GENERAL

- A. This Agreement is subject in all respects to the laws of the State of Michigan with respect to the powers, rights, duties, and obligations of the Board, the Union, and employees in the bargaining unit, and in the event that any provision of this Agreement shall, at any time, be held to be contrary to law by a court of competent jurisdiction from whose final judgment or decree no appeal has been taken within the time provided for doing so, such provision shall be void and inoperative; however, all other provisions of this Agreement shall continue in effect, and the parties shall enter into immediate collective bargaining negotiations for the purpose of arriving at a mutually satisfactory replacement for such Article or Section.
- B. The Board reserves all rights and powers conferred upon it by the Constitution and laws of the State of Michigan and of the United States, except as limited by this Agreement. The Board agrees, however, that except as to those working

conditions incorporated in this Agreement (which may be changed only by mutual consent), no change in present working conditions which have been set forth in writing in (a) Board of Education proceedings or (b) the Administrative Handbook will be made effective without notification to the Union, and consultation with it respecting such proposed change. Such notification will be given as far in advance of the effective date of such proposed change as is reasonably possible, with the objective of affording the Union an opportunity, if it has objections to any such proposed change, to resolve such objections with the Board or its representatives before any such proposed change is made effective. However, the parties both recognize the possiblity that emergency situations may arise in which prior notification and consultation is not feasible.

C. This Agreement shall be binding upon the successors and assignees of the parties hereto, and no provisions, terms or obligations herein contained shall be affected, modified, altered, or changed to the detriment of the other party in any respect whatsoever by the consolidation, merger, sale, transfer, lease, or assignment of either party hereto, or affected, modified, altered, or changed in any respect whatsoever by any change of any kind of the ownership or management of either party hereto or of any separable, independent segment of either party hereto, except to the extent that the law provides to the contrary.

### ARTICLE XLVIII -- CHANGE AND TERMINATION

This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect through January 3, 1993, and, thereafter, shall be renewed from year to year unless any party hereto shall notify the other party in writing at least ninety (90) days prior to any anniversary date of this Agreement of its desire to change in any way or terminate this Agreement. However, it may be continued on a day-to-day basis by mutual agreement by both parties. Such written notice shall be sent by registered or certified mail to the other parties. In the event of proper notice by either party to change and/or terminate, and no agreement on such changes is reached prior to 11:59 p.m., January 3, 1993, the Agreement shall be deemed to have terminated at 11:59 p.m., January 3, 1993.

FOR THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CITY OF DETROIT, MICHIGAN: FOR THE LOCAL UNION 345, MICHIGAN DISTRICT COUNCIL #25 OF THE AMERICAN FEDERATION OF STATE, COUNTY AND MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES, AFL-CIQ:

DATED:

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY ACTION OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION ON: MARCH 14, 1990.

Lawrence C. Patric) Board of Education

Lydia Barlow, of the Board

## DETROIT PUBLIC SCHOOLS 1989-90 Salary Schedule B Cleaners and Assistant Custodians Group 1 - School Housekeeping Classifications

### APPENDIX "A"

\$9+

			Daily Rates		Rates Effective 01/01/90 Biweekly Rates	1/01/90	Annual Rates	
Pay Class Code	Position Code	Description	First 12 Yrs.	After 12 Yrs.	First 12 Yrs.	After 12 Yrs.		After 12 Yrs.
Cleaners (43 Weeks): (1)	eks): (1)							
3360 D	137	25 Hours Per Week	\$34.6900	\$35.0500	\$346.90	\$350.50	\$7,458	\$7,536
3370 D	138	30 Hours Per Week	41.6280	42.0600	416.28	420.60	8,950	9,043
3380 D	139	35 Hours Per Week	48.5660	49.0700	485.66	490.70	10,442	10,550
3390 D	144	40 Hours Per Week	55.5040	56.0800	555.04	560.80	11,933	12,057
Custodians: (43 Weeks)			E					
3340 D	285	AsstProbationary	65.3914	65.9674	653.91	659.67	14,059	14,183
3350 D	285	AsstNon Competitive	65.3914	65.9674	653.91	659.67	14,059	14,183
3330 D	285	AsstRegular	66.2396	66.8156	662.40	668.16	14,242	14,365
(52 Weeks)								
3420 D	285	AsstProbationary	65.3914	65.9674	653.91	659.67	17,048	17,199
3510 D	285	AsstNon Competitive	65.3914	65.9674	653.91	659.67	17,048	17,199
3400 D	285	AsstRegular	66.2396	66.8156	662.40	91.899	17,270	17,420
8410 H	285	Asst. Custodian, Alt. Pos.	8.2799 Hourly	8.3519 Hourly				
Locker Room Att 3240	endants (43 We. 126	Locker Room Attendants (43 Weeks): (1) 3240 126 Locker Room Attn., Sr.	63.2000	63.7760	632.00	637.76	13,588	13,712

<sup>(1)</sup> First 12 year rates for Cleaner classifications are based on the hourly rate of the 40-hour Cleaner-current rate \$6.9380. After 12 year rates have the following longevity biweekly value added to the first 12 year rate: 40-hour Cleaner and Senior Locker Room Attendant \$5.76; 35-hour Cleaner \$5.04; 30-hour Cleaner \$4.32; 25-hour Cleaner \$3.60.

DETROIT PUBLIC SCHOOLS
1989-90 Salary Schedule B
Cleaners and Assistant Custodians
Group 2 - Other Regular Classifications

							Rates Ff	+6\$ Rates Effective 01/01/90	06/10/			
Pay Class	Position		Stand.	۵	Daily Rates		Bi	Biweekly Rates	es.	A	Annual Rates	
Code	Code	Description	Weeks	Minimum	Minimum Maximum Incre.	Incre.	Minimum	Minimum Maximum Incre.	Incre.	Minimum	Minimum Maximum	Incr
2600 D	135	Bus Attendant	41.5	41.5 \$61.0151	\$62.8665 \$1.2357	\$1.2357	\$610.15	\$610.15 \$628.67	\$12.36	\$12,661	\$12,661 \$13,045	\$256
5760 D	186	Dispatcher, Asst. 41.5	41.5	63.8106	65.6733	1.2357	638.11	656.73	12.36	13,241	13,627	256
3520 D	195	Elevator Operator 43	43	53.4904	58.4280	1.2282	534.90	534.90 584.28	12.28	11,500	12,562	264
2580 D	396	School Technician 40	04	70.0069	85.9495	1.4342	700.07	859.50	14.34	14,001	17,190	287
1350 D	168	Stores Clerk	25	57.9352	67.4262	1.2408	579.35	674.26	12.41	15,105	17,579	323
7610 D	168	Stores Clerk - Ext. Work	t. Work	57.9352	67.4262	1	1	ł	1	1	;	1

### NOTES

(1) The final increment for School Technician is \$7.3374 daily of \$1,467 annually to maintain maximum in 8 steps.

Longevity - Regular and ESRP employees are eligible for the following salary adjustment in biweekly payments effective with the payroll service period following completion of eleven (11) years of Board Service.

Annual	\$150	150	150	180	
Biweekly	\$7.50	7.39	9.90	9.90	
Standard Weeks	40	14	43	52	

# DETROIT PUBLIC SCHOOLS 1989-90 Salary Schedule B Cleaners and Assistant Custodians Group 3 - Food Service Hourly Classifications (40 Weeks)

	ns Daily	\$26.1344		33.1680	46.5304	62.3784	63.1784	56.1104	910,	26.2860	39.4290	52.5720	24.5168	30.6460	26.4376	33.0470	39.6564	40.2564
	After 20 Months 1y Da	•			7			-			-,	-		,		Ε,	<b>F</b> )	*
	After Hourly	\$6.5336		6.6336	6.6472	7.7973	7.8973	7.0138	7.1138	6.5715	6.5715	6.5715	6.1292	6.1292	6.6094	6.6094	6.6094	6.7094
\$9+	Rates Effective 01/01/90 After 10 Months Hourly Daily	\$25.3252		32.1565	45.2039	60.7608	61.5608	54.4920	55.2920	25.4772	38.2158	50.9544	23.8088	29.7610	25.5276	31.9095	38.2914	38.8914
	Rates Effec After Hourly	\$6.3313		6.4313	6.4577	7.5951	7.6951	6.8115	6.9115	6.3693	6.3693	6.3693	5.9522	5.9522	6.3819	6.3819	6.3819	6.4819
	Daily	\$24.3644		30,9555	43,4343	59.0416	59.8416	52.8752	53.6752	24.4660	36.6990	48.9320	22.7980	28.4975	24.5168	30.6460	36.7752	37.3752
	Appointment,	1		1	6	2	2			•	2				~			
	Hourly	\$6.0911		6.1911	6.2049	7.3802	7.4802	6.6094	6.7094	6.1165	6.1165	6.1165	5.6995	5.6995	6.1292	6.1292	6.1292	6.2292
*	Description	Cashier Helper, Food Serv. (20 Hrs.)	Cashier Helper, Training (5 Hrs.) \$.10 hour over regular	classification	Cook, Asst. Base Kit. (7 Hrs.)	Cook, Chief, Base Kit. (8 Hrs.)	Cook, Chief, Training (8 Hrs.) \$.10 hour over regular classification	Cook, First (8 Hrs.)	Cook, First, Training (8 Hrs.) \$.10 hour over regular classification	Food Service Attendant (20 Hrs.)	Food Service Attendant (30 Hrs.)	Food Service Attendant (40 Hrs.)	General Helper, Food Service (20 Hrs.)	General Helper, Food Service (25 Hrs.)	Sat. Coord-Permanent (4 Hrs.)	Sat. Coord-Permanent (5 Hrs.)	Sat. Coord-Permanent (6 Hrs.)	Sat. Coord-Permanent Training (6 Hrs.) \$.10 hour over regular classification
	Position Code	347	504		046	047	048	177	179	314	314	314	297	297	. 589	589	589	\$0\$
	Pay Class Code	2800 D	6610 D		2690 D	S700 D	6590 D	5710 D	0 0099	6440 D	5580 D	5610 D	6450 D	S810 D	6010 D	0 0509	0 0609	6620 D

1989-90 Salary Schedule B
Cleaners and Assistant Custodians
Group 3 - Food Service Hourly Classifications (40 Weeks)
(Continued) DETROIT PUBLIC SCHOOLS

NOTES

The promotional increment and the rate adjustment for temporary additional assignents to a higher classification at least five cents (\$.05) per hour added to the current regular classification.

Position Code 046	Description Cook, Asst., Alt. Pos. Cook, Chief, Alt. Pos.	Substitute \$6.0407	<b>(D</b> )	+6% Rates Effective 01/01/90 Hourly rates After ant 10-Months \$6.4577	50 %
, о п		6.3819	6.6094	6.3693	7.0138
ਹ ਲ	Cashier Helper, Alt. Poe. General Helper, Alt. Pos.	5.8510	6.0911	6.3313	6.5336
Sat	Sat. Coord-Permanent, Alt. Pos.	5.9522	6.1292	6.3819	6.6094

DETROIT PUBLIC SCHOOLS
1989-90 Salary Schedule B
Cleaners and Assistant Custodians
Group 4 - Other Hourly Classifications

\$9+

Rates Eff. 01/01/90 burly Daily	 •	I	1	1	40.8690	44.2747	47.6805	54.4920	1	1	68.6720	49.2737	45.3803	
Rates Ef Hourly	\$7.6203	7.6203	7.6268	7.6268	6.8115	6.8115	6.8115	6.8115	6.8115	6.8115	8.5840	7.0391	6.4829	
Description	Bus Attendant, Regular Part-Time	Bus Attendant, Regular Part-Time Extended Work	Bus Attendant, Alt. Pos.	Bus Attendant, ES	Special Educ. Aide (30 Hrs.)	Special Educ. Aide (32.5 Hrs.)	Special Educ. Aide (35 Hrs.)	Special Educ. Aide (40 Hrs.)	Special Educ. Aide Alt. Pos.	Special Educ. Aide Summer School	Teacher Aide, Adaptive Phys. Educ. (8 Hrs.)	Teacher Aide, Gd. I Trmbl. (7 Hrs.)	Teacher Aide, Gd. I Trnbl. ES (7 Hrs.)	
Position Code	135	3135	3135	2135	446	449	447	448	446	448	108	438	2438	
Pay Class Code	5500 H	7280 Н	8900 H	(1) 9150 H	5870 D	5880 D	5480 D	2890 D	Н 0988	Н 0991	0 0809	0 0619	9010 D	

<sup>(1)</sup> Rate based on minimum of regular classification (8 hours.)

DETROIT PUBLIC SCHOOLS
1989-90 Salary Schedule B
Cleaners and Assistant Custodians
Group 5 - Rates Which Do Not Require Personnel Action Assignments

Community Use of Schools

+6% Rates Effective 01/01/90

52.6320 \$44.1018 44.3578 Minimum 41.3721 47.3431 49.2984 65.7931 Sundays & Holidays Saturday PM 9.8573 9.1938 Hourly \$9.8004 11.6960 10.9552 14.6207 10.5207 31.5621 Minimum \$29.4012 35.0880 29.5719 27.5814 43.8621 32.8656 Week Days 9.1938 9.8573 Hourly \$9.8004 11.6960 10.9552 14.6207 10.5207 General Helper, Food Service School Technician (Class VI) Cashier Helper Food Service Cook, First - Food Service Cook, Chief - Food Service Food Service Attendant Elevator Operator

### APPENDIX "B"

DIVISIONS	GRI	EVANCE PROCEDURE
Assistant Custodians Cleaners Locker Room Attendant	4) 3) 2) 1)	Arbitration Superintendent - or designee Area Superintendent Principal or Administrator in Charge
Food Service	4) 3) 2) 1)	Arbitration Superintendent - or designee Director - or designee Food Service Manager
Bus Attendants	4) 3) 2) 1)	Arbitration Superintendent - or designee Director - or designee Principal or Administrator in Charge
Stores Clerk	4) 3) 2) 1)	Arbitration Superintendent - or designee Director - or designee Warehouse Supervisor
Special Education Aides Teacher Aides (Trainable)	4) 3) 2) 1)	Arbitration Superintendent - or designee Director of Special Education Principal or Administrator in Charge
School Technicians	4) 3) 2)	Arbitration Superintendent - or designee Supervisor of School Technicians Principal or Administrator in Charge

<sup>\*</sup>Notify Unions of any change in the above titles and/or personnel

### APPENDIX "C"

### STATEMENT OF POLICY

The intent of this Statement of Policy is to establish personnel practices and conditions concerning maternity.

Absences from work which are associated with pregnancy, childbirth, and childcare shall be subject to the respective regular Board provisions as applicable, for approved illness absence, leave of absence for illness (without pay because sick bank is exhausted), approved absence without pay, or leave of absence for personal business (except as specifically otherwise provided in this Statement of Policy).

Since continuing to work, disability absence, and return to work are predicated on medical conditions, the failure of a pregnant employee to give required notice and submit the required medical evaluations and/or certifications from her physician shall be cause, at the discretion of the Board, after ten (10) days notice, to place the employee on Leave of Absence for Personal Business.

### A. REQUIREMENTS FOR CONTINUED WORK:

The employee who has become pregnant is expected to notify her principal or other administrator as soon as possible after her condition is confirmed, but shall so notify the administrator before the end of her fourth month of pregnancy.

- 2. In order to provide for maximum continuity of instruction, the employee is expected to inform her administrator in writing of the tentative dates of leaving and returning as soon as possible after her condition is confirmed. Notification of tentative dates shall be given in writing no later than the end of the fourth month of pregnancy. Tentative dates may be revised.
- 3. An employee may continue to work in her current assignment provided that the employee shall submit statements from her personal physician which shall certify the anticipated date of delivery; and that she is able to work in her current assignment (the Board shall develop such a physician's certificate form); and further, provided that she is able to, and continues to fulfill all conditions and requirements of employment in her current assignment and demonstrates ability to conduct her regular duties and activities on the job.

### B. REQUIREMENTS FOR APPROVED ILLNESS ABSENCE FOR DISABILITY (ILLNESS) WITH PAY, OR LEAVE OF ABSENCE FOR ILLNESS (without pay because sick bank is exhausted):

The date of leaving work because of disability shall be determined by the employee and her physician provided that it is certified by the employee's personal physician and confirmed by the Board Medical Examiner that the employee is unable to work.

- During the period of absence because of disability associated with pregnancy and/or childbirth, the employee is entitled to approved illness absence with pay to the extent of her sick leave bank subject to all provisions for illness absence, provided that disability to work is certified by her personal physician and confirmed by the Board Medical Examiner.
- 3. An employee shall not move from any unpaid Leave of Absence status to paid disability absence status.
- 4. An employee shall not move from a disability absence to an approved absence without pay except that an employee may make such request within the four (4) weeks preceding the end of a semester.

### C. REQUIREMENTS FOR LEAVE OF ABSENCE FOR PERSONAL BUSINESS WITHOUT PAY:

An employee may be granted Leave of Absence for Personal Business for absences which are not disability absences but are related to the preparation for childbirth and/or the care of the newborn child. Such Leave of Absence is subject to the regular provisions for Leave of Absence for Personal Business.

### D. REQUIREMENTS FOR RETURN TO WORK:

 After childbirth, the employee's return must be approved by the employee's personal physican and the Board Medical Examiner.

- 2. During the period of absence because of disability, or approved absence without pay of up to four (4) weeks, the employee's regular position will be held, subject to the regular procedures for approved illness absence, and the regular procedures for approved absence without pay.
- 3. Regular conditions and provisions applicable to returns to active employment from illness absence, Leave of Absence for Illness, Leave of Absence for Personal Business or resignation shall apply.

### E. RELATED CONDITIONS;

- Regular conditions and provisions for continuation of insurance will apply to approved absences and/or Leave of Absence shall apply.
- 2. The decision of the Board Medical Examiner is binding except that if an employee is not satisfied with the decision of the Board Medical Examiner, as to her ability or disability for work, the employee may appeal the decision under the following conditions:

The Board Medical Office shall provide a list of at least three appropriate specialists. The employee shall consult any one of those designated at her own expense. The determination of the specialist shall be final and binding as to whether the employee is able or unable to work.

3. The Office of Personnel may require a medical examination by the Board of Education Medical Examiner for an employee at any time when the employee's ability or disability for work is questioned.

### APPENDIX "D"

March 14, 1990

Mr. James Glass, President AFSCME, Council 25 16861 Wyoming Detroit, MI 48221

Dear Mr. Glass:

Supplementing our Collective Bargaining Agreement reached on March 14, 1990, the parties agree as follows:

The Board does not contemplate massive layoffs of employees in the bargaining unit as a solution to its present financial difficulty.

In the event such layoffs are necessary, the Board will meet with the Union to discuss the manner of such layoffs and the effect of such layoffs on the membersip of the bargaining unit.

Very truly yours,

George Kimbrough Executive Director

Mr. James Glass President AFSCME, Council 25 16861 Wyoming Detroit, MI 48221

Dear Mr. Glass:

Supplementing our Collective Bargaining Agreement reached on March 14, 1990, the parties agree as follows:

Should the Board declare any day as an official non-work day for all employees of the Board, said declaration shall apply to the employees in this bargaining unit. (i.e., May 31, 1968)

Very truly yours,

George Kimbrough / Executive Director

Mr. James Glass President 16861 Wyoming Detroit, MI 48221

Dear Mr. Glass:

Supplementing our Collective Bargaining Agreement reached on March 14, 1990, the parties agree as follows:

The right of contracting or sub-contracting is the right of the Board. However, the right to contract or sub-contract shall not be used by the Board for the purpose of undermining the Union, nor to discriminate against any appointed employee with seniority in the bargaining unit, while at the same time entering into any contracts or sub-contracts of work which has previously been performed exclusively by employees in the bargaining unit.

Very truly yours,

George Kimbrough Executive Director

Mr. James Glass President AFSCME, Council 25 16861 Wyoming Detroit, MI 48221

Dear Mr. Glass:

Supplementing our Collective Bargaining Agreement reached on March 14, 1990, the parties agree as follows:

It is agreed that the work year of employees in the bargaining unit shall not be reduced because of the change from a forty week school year for teachers and other employees.

The specific assignment of employees in the bargaining unit for the period after the close of the regular school year shall be determined by the head of the division of which said employees are regularly assigned during the school year. The assignment shall be similar to the regular work assignment and in proximity to the regular work location, but not be related to either regular work or summer school functions.

Very truly yours,

George Kimbrough Executive Director

Mr. James Glass President AFSCME, Council 25 16861 Wyoming Detroit, MI 48221

Dear Mr. Glass:

Supplementing our Collective Bargaining Agreement reached on March 14, 1990, the parties agree as follows:

Accompanying the first dues deductions print-out, following the execution of this Agreement, the Board, through its Payroll Department, shall submit to the Union the name, the classification and the last recorded address of all persons in the bargaining unit for whom there is a dues check-off authorization on file. Except that the address shall be deleted for any employee in the bargaining unit who shall in writing make a request to the Board for such deletion.

Very truly yours,

George Kimbrough C Executive Director